
PLANNING AND ZONING MINUTES 
MINUTES OF THE BENSON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

May 7, 2019 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Andrew Abernathy opened the meeting at 6:00pm.  
 
2. PLEDGE 
Chair Andrew Abernathy led the pledge.  
 
3.  ROLL CALL 
Andrew Abernathy, Dennis Bringham, David Lambert and Angie Roberts were present. Elton 
Bowman was absent. A quorum was present.  
 
4.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Commissioner Dennis Bringham motioned to approve the April 2, 2019 Regular Meeting 
minutes and April 23, 2019 Work Session minutes.  Commissioner Angie Roberts seconded. 
Motion passed 4-0. 
 
5.  WORK SESSION 
Chair Andrew Abernathy introduced the drafts to the zoning districts that were discussed late 
2018.  He reminded Commissioners that several uses and districts were eliminated or combined 
in hopes of simplifying the zoning districts. 
 
Chair Andrew Abernathy introduced the occupancy classification of the building code, noting 
that they do not always correspond directly to zoning uses.  He also noted that a single structure 
can have multiple building code occupancies within it.  He further commented that setbacks are 
used for fire protection in the building code, regardless of what the zoning regulations may be 
required for land use, aesthetics or other reasons. 
 
SFR 
Chair Andrew Abernathy stated this proposed district would allow site built or modular 
structures for single dwelling units, but no mobile, manufactured, RV or tiny homes.  Several 
new lot sizes were proposed, including eliminating the 43,000 sq. feet parcel, reducing the 
existing 5,000 to 4,000, and combining the existing 8,000 and 7,000 to one 7,000 minimum 
district.  Chair Andrew Abernathy noted that all proposed sizes are minimums, not maximums; 
lots can get bigger but not smaller. 
 
Dennis Bringham asked about difference between modular and manufactured home.  Andrew 
Abernathy replied that modular buildings are intended to be secured to a foundation, unlike a 
manufactured home which doesn’t need a foundation.  He further clarified that mobile homes 
were built prior to 1976 while manufactured homes are the movable homes built to the HUD 
standards first introduced in 1976.  
   
Commissioner Angie Roberts stated she was asked about living in an RV.  Chair Andrew 
Abernathy stated it’s not allowed and noted the proposed accessory uses, which are similar to the 



existing accessory uses, allow an RV to be parked on the residential property but not lived in 
such as being provided with permanent utility hookup.  
 
Commissioner Angie Roberts asked about mother-in-law suites.  Chair Andrew Abernathy 
briefly talked about interchanging terms, instead of calling everything an accessory use.   
Commissioner Angie Roberts thought it was contradictory to allow “guest houses” when they 
cannot be lived in.   (Note: Definitions clarify that an accessory structure is secondary to the primary structure 
and that a guest house is not a dwelling unit because it cannot contain cooking facilities.  This prevents the SFR 
district from becoming a multi-family district by homeowners constructing secondary dwelling units.)  Chair 
Andrew Abernathy suggested creating a new section to describe how to allow accessory 
dwelling units.  This section would include items such as distance between buildings, size of the 
accessory dwelling unit, and how utilities are installed.  He noted that having regulations and 
guidelines generally prevent having more than 2 dwellings on a parcel that is zoned for a single 
residence.  
 
Commissioner Angie Roberts questioned about parking within setbacks or the right of way 
beyond the sidewalk.  Chair Andrew Abernathy replied that parking on someone else’s private 
property, such as the non-buildable setback area, can be legally prevented, but parking on the 
right-of-way cannot necessarily be prevented because the area in question is legal common 
access.  He then mentioned that ordinances can be written to prevent parking anywhere on a 
property except in a designated space with the goal of preventing parking in the front yard, even 
though it is on private property. 
 
MH overlay 
Chair Andrew Abernathy explained that overlays can occur in any district and are essentially 
special permissions given within a specific boundary. He noted that the location in this chapter 
are very specific and apply to the already established manufactured home subdivisions, such as 
Ironhorse subdivision, and the R-3 district, mainly on the north side of town, that currently 
allows manufactured homes as an allowable use. The overlay could exclusively limit housing 
stock to manufactured homes, not RVs. 
 
Chair Andrew Abernathy noted that there are similarities between this overlay district and the 
proposed single family residential districts.  He noted that the minimum parcel size is 5,000 sq. 
feet which is larger than the minimum 4,000 sq. foot single family parcel size.   
 
Limited Mixed Use 
Chair Andrew Abernathy noted that this is an entirely new section that mixes various housing 
stock with small scale commercial. He noted that prior discussions advocated for using this 
district to replace the existing small scale commercial (B-1) and the sections of town that are 
zoned R-3 and lack any commercial activity (north side of town) to allow them to open 
neighborhood-scale commercial in the midst of the existing residential.  Commissioner Angie 
Roberts agreed that allowing broader land use would benefit underserved neighborhoods.  Chair 
Andrew Abernathy explained that the difference between Limited Mixed Use and Mixed Use is 
the size of the parcel for commercial purposes, 8,000 sq. foot, which limits the size of the 
functional structure to residential or residential scale business.  (Limited Use does not have any 
parcel size limitations.) 
 



Parcel sizes for the various types of housing stock in both Limited Mixed Use and Mixed Use 
were briefly discussed, with single family attached type housing (duplex, townhouses) requiring 
slightly larger parcel sizes at 3,000 sq. feet than multi-family apartment complexes at 2,000 sq. 
feet per dwelling unit on the assumption that multiple family complexes are more likely to 
include shared common area. 
 
Industrial 
Chair Andrew Abernathy noted that heavy and light industrial had been combined into one 
district and the extractive industries formerly allowed in the heavy industrial district were 
removed since they are unlikely to occur in Benson with the small area zoned for such activity.  
The remaining industries are geared toward manufacturing, storage and transportation activities.  
 
Chair Andrew Abernathy noted that with the new zoning district categories, nearly the entire 
town will be rezoned, at least in title, if not in allowable, hopefully more, uses.  He also noted 
that renaming the districts will also require a General Plan update by Council. 
 
Article 14 Parking 
Chair Andrew Abernathy commented that parking is becoming more shared by have X parking 
spaces within Y distance of a facility, rather than strict regulations that each parcel have X 
spaces for their own use, regardless of whether or not those spaces are regularly filled.  
 
The existing ordinance states exactly how many spaces are required for each possible land use 
type, which is difficult to estimate and are mostly unused for most of the year, possibly excepting 
Christmas shopping season.    
 
Parking lot placement was briefly introduced, with Commissioner Angie Roberts noting that 
business owners like cars in front so they look busy, with Andrew Abernathy noting that some 
cities prefer parking in the back to reduce the cluttered look of cars. If Fourth Street grows, 
parking will have to become more flexible, especially on event days, because Fourth Street 
cannot be used for parking or for crossing due to ADOT restrictions.  
 
6. ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Dennis Bringham motioned to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Angie 
Roberts seconded.  Meeting adjourned at 7:25 pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


